
Dare County Tourism Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 

9:00 a.m. 

Curtis Creech Memorial Boardroom 
Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Offices 

One Visitors Center Circle 
Manteo, NC 27954 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 

MANTEO, NC 27954 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order

II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence

III. Approval of Agenda

IV. Approval of Minutes from the January 18, 2024 Meeting

V. Public Comments

VI. Chair/Steering Committee Report

1. Tourism Impact Grant Extension Request-Town of Nags Head

2. Modified Restricted Fund Guidelines

a. Tourism Impact Grant

b. Long Term Restricted Fund Grant

3. Letter of Support for the readoption of Area of Environmental Concern Status for 

Jockey's Ridge State Park

VII. Budget & Finance Report

VIII. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates

IX. Old Business

X. New Business

XI. Board Member Comments

XII. Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting

XIII. Adjournment



 

January 18, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 

DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 18, 2024 

9:00 A.M. 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

MANTEO, NC 27954 

 

 

ATTENDING:   

Mark Ballog, Mark Batenic, Tod Clissold, Tonia Cohen, Terry Gray, John Head, Richard Hess, David 

Hines, Tess Judge, Dennis Robinson, Monica Thibodeau, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  

 

EXCUSED ABSENCE: Wally Overman and Mike Siers. 

 

STAFF: 

Lee Nettles, Executive Director  

Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  

Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  

Lorrie Love, Tourism Sales and Events Manager  

 

OTHERS ATTENDING: None. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 

by a moment of silence.  

 

The Clerk swore in the following Dare County Tourism Board Appointees:   

  

Mark Ballog, Outer Banks Restaurant Association 

Mark Batenic, Town of Southern Shores 

Terry Gray, Town of Kill Devil Hills 

John Head, Outer Banks Association of REALTORS® 

David Hines, Town of Kitty Hawk 

Tess Judge, Member at Large 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS: Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel, presented the Nominating Committee's 

recommendation for Chair, Monica Thibodeau.  Legal Counsel called for nominations from the floor.  

Hearing none, Mr. Batenic moved to elect Monica Thibodeau as Chairman.  Second by Mr. Hess.  The 

motion passed unanimously (11-0).  

 

Legal Counsel then turned the meeting over to the Chair.  

 

The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Vice Chair, David Hines and 

called for nominations from the floor.  Hearing none, the Chair closed nominations and called for the 

vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-0).  

 

The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Treasurer, Tod Clissold and called 

for nominations from the floor.  Hearing none, the Chair closed nominations and called for the vote. The 

motion passed unanimously (11-0).  

 

 

 

 



 

January 18, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS (continued):  

The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Assistant Treasurer, Dennis 

Robinson and called for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, the Chair closed nominations and 

called for the vote. The motion passed unanimously (11-0).  

 

The Chair presented the Nominating Committee's recommendation for Secretary, Tonia Cohen and called 

for nominations from the floor. Hearing none, the Chair closed nominations and called for the vote. The 

motion passed unanimously (11-0).  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Hess moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. Gray. There was 

no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Batenic moved to approve the meeting minutes from December 14, 

2023 meeting.   Second by Mr. Hess. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (11-0). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There were no public comments made. No written comments were received.  

 

BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Diane Bognich reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 

received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2023-2024 were up 2.31 % compared to 2022-2023 actual receipts.  

Diane Bognich noted that the Adventure Park chose to renew their lease for five years.  

 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES:  Lee Nettles: 

• Gave a remembrance for Bobby Owens 

• Noted the fire training burn at the former Pamlico Jacks, and clean up post burn 

• Temporary use of South Beach Grill parking area by the Town of Nags Head public works 

• Marketing dashboard and visitation statistics. Lee Nettles also noted the beginning stages of a 

website audit and usability study. 

• VisitNC Travel and Tourism Conference in March, in Greenville, NC. 

 

On behalf of Jeff Schwartzenberg, Lee Nettles noted the upcoming Long Range Tourism Management 

Plan Special Committee meeting on February 7, 2024 [rescheduled from January 10, 2024 due to 

weather], and the ongoing work with the non-profits. 

 

Lorrie Love reviewed previous and upcoming group tradeshows. She also noted that OBXmas and the 12 

Bars of Christmas were successful, and that the 2nd Annual Softshell Week would be May 13-18, 2024.  

 

On behalf of Aaron Tuell, Lorrie Love noted an upcoming appearance on WAVY-TV 10 Morning Show 

in Hampton Roads, Virginia.  

 

OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  There was no new business before the Board. 

 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: The Chair and other Board members gave tributes to Bobby 

Owens. Board members introduced themselves and spoke on what is happening within their towns and 

organizations. Mark Ballog reviewed the 2023 12 Bars of Christmas and plans for the 2024 event. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

January 18, 2024 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:   

• The Board set their meeting schedule for the third Thursday of each month at 9 a.m. in Curtis 

Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC   

 

• The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 15, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech 

Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC. 

 

The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned 

the meeting at 10:34 a.m. 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

 

_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 



At their February 6, 2024 meeting, the Steering Committee 
recommended approval of an extension to June 30, 2025. 













DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

(DBA OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU) 

 LONG-TERM UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 

RULES & APPLICATION 

 

 

Program Intent 

 

Dare County Tourism Board’s Long-term Unappropriated fund was established to financially 

assist Dare County Governmental Units and Non-profit Organizations with programs or 

services needed due to the impact of tourism on the County.  

 

The Dare County Tourism Board (hereinafter “Tourism Board” or “Board”) finances the 

Long-term Unappropriated fund by an annual appropriation as approved by the Board from 

long-term appropriations up to a maximum of $500,000.  The annual appropriation comes 

from 70% of the ¼ of the 1% occupancy tax and 1% prepared meal tax revenues generated 

annually in the Special Revenue Fund. 

 

Applicant Assumes This Risk 

 

Should local, state, or federal laws prohibit the Dare County Tourism Board’s performance, 

disband the Dare County Tourism Board, or repeal the Board’s enabling legislation, then the 

Dare County Tourism Board shall have no obligation to fulfill the terms and obligations of 

this agreement, including, but not limited to funding and reimbursement of applicant’s 

expenditures. If the Dare County Tourism Board’s authority hereunder is limited or 

terminated, then this Agreement shall be void as of the effective date of said ordinance, law or 

regulation and the Dare County Tourism Board shall be forgiven all performance obligations 

that are its responsibility under this agreement that is or are made contrary to law.  All 

applicants must agree to this tremendous limitation to the Dare County Tourism Board’s 

performance obligations, assume the risks associated therewith, including the risk that the 

Applicant may not be reimbursed for expenditures under this program.  

 

Grant Criteria   

 

A. Applicants shall be a Dare County Local Government or a non-profit entity with its 

principal place of business in Dare County and having its non-profit status        

conferred in writing under Section 501 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.   

 

B. Projects must be located in Dare County.  

 

C. Grants will be paid as a reimbursement only after the project is complete and all paid 

receipts (for both grant and match) presented as described under the terms of the 

Contract Agreement. Extensions must be made in writing and delivered to the grant 

administrator no later than June 1st. Project extensions must be approved by the Board 

or staff if the Board has granted that authority to the staff.  

 

 

 

     Created February 18, 2021 

Modified 10/21/2021 

Modified 8/16/22  
Modified 2/15/24 

 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

(DBA OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU) 

 LONG-TERM UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 

RULES & APPLICATION 

 

 

 

D. Grant applications must be directed toward unplanned, extraordinary, non-

recurring, and urgently needed projects.  Price increases on contracts will not be 

considered as a reason for application. The Tourism Board has sole discretion to 

decide whether the applicant could have or should have planned for the expense. 

 

E. Grant cannot be transferred or assigned to a third party, unless approved by the 

Tourism Board in writing. 

 

F. The following items are ineligible:  The purchase of interests in real property, 

escalation in pricing (materials and/or other items in contracts), preliminary 

architectural, engineering, surveying and other forms of professional services, in-kind 

services (for example, administrative salaries of public employees), any local, state or 

federal tax, administrative and/or operational expenses customarily funded by 

Governmental or nonprofit entities, including but not limited to: salaries, creation or 

redesign of websites, brochures and other promotional materials, supplies routine 

repairs, maintenance and/or replacement of items previously funded with a Tourism 

Board grant. 

 

G. Personal property purchased and/or real property improvements funded through this 

grant assistance shall be retained for use of the public and the applicant agrees to 

return the amount of the grant to the Tourism Board should the personal or real 

property or facility be converted to some other use than that represented in the grant 

application. Real property developed or improved under this grant program must be 

lien and encumbrance free (except as specifically approved in writing by the Tourism 

Board). The Board, in its sole discretion, may require an attorney’s opinion on title, 

restrictions, covenants and/or easements be recorded in the public registry to evidence 

the Board’s requirements and conditions.  

 

H. Applicant may only apply for one project from the Unappropriated Long-term fund 

within a three-year period, unless an earlier request is deemed appropriate by the grant 

administrator. 

 

I. Approved organization must come to the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau to meet 

with the Grant Administrator prior to submitting an application.  The purpose of 

this process is to jointly review the application and answer any questions the applicant 

may have.  

 

J. Applications will be reviewed by the Grant Administrator as they are received.  The 

applicant will be notified within seven days of receiving if the application if it does 

appears not to meet the requirements of the grant. The applicant will have a chance to 

modify, adjust and correct the application before it is submitted to the Steering 

Committee, but assumes the responsibility of responding in time for the Steering 

Committee to consider the application.  The Grant Administrator and the Executive 

Director, or his/her designee will be available to assist the applicants. 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

(DBA OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU) 

 LONG-TERM UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 

RULES & APPLICATION 

 

 

 

K. All proposals that meet mechanical guidelines will be forwarded to the Steering 

Committee for consideration.  The Steering Committee will make its 

recommendations to the full Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled Board 

meeting.  Recommended projects will then be forwarded to the Dare County Board of 

Commissioners for consensus. 

 

L. Applying organization will be notified within seven days following presentation to the 

Dare County Board of Commissioners as to acceptance or rejection of Long-term 

Unappropriated awards.  

 

M.  Requirement for reimbursement for approved project must have the following: 

 

1. Approvals from all organizations directly or indirectly involved in the 

proposed project must agree with all terms and conditions outlined.  

Burden of compliance rests with the applying organization. 

 

2. Appropriate sign recognition of contribution made by the Dare County 

Tourism Board.  To include Board logo and “Project Funded In Part 

By The Dare County Tourism Board” or other similar language 

approved by the Grant Administrator.  

 

3. If not a physical capital project, appropriate recognition of 

contribution made by the Dare County Tourism Board, including logo, 

must be in press releases and all associated publicity materials. 

 

4. Approved signage or other appropriate recognition must be maintained 

permanently. 

 

5. Copies of all invoices and payments related to the project. 

 

N. Board or Staff may modify the above terms and conditions at any time, subject to 

Board approval. 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

(DBA OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU) 

 LONG-TERM UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 

RULES & APPLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Applying Organization: ____________________________________________  

 

Address: _______________________________________________________________ 

  

               ________________________________________________________________ 

 

Contact Person: __________________________________________________________ 

 

Phone: _____________________   Email: _____________________________________ 

 

Project Name: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Description: _______________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Amount Requested: _________________________ 

 

 

Amount Applicant is contributing: ____________________________________ 

 

 

What other funding sources does the applicant have for completing the project? This should 

include a detailed description of how the project will proceed if the grant is not fully funded: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Describe how this is a program or service due to the impact of tourism? 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 



DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 

(DBA OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU) 

 LONG-TERM UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS 

RULES & APPLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

Describe how this is an urgent project that is extraordinary and non-recurring: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Describe your Organization’s capital project/improvement plan: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Why can this project not be funded under the Tourism Impact Grant? 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Attach a copy of your IRS nonprofit letter, if applicable, and a balance sheet. 

 

 

I have read and reviewed the above rules and understand that our organization bears the 

responsibility to understand and comply with all terms and conditions of these rules, special 

conditions imposed by the Dare County Tourism Board and any contracts issued as a result of 

funding for the project.   This application vests applicant with no rights or expectations of 

approval and certainly not receipt of funds. 

 
 

Name of person making application: _____________________________________ 

 

Title: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 
 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Signature      Date 



 

 
 

Duck * Southern Shores * Kitty Hawk * Kill Devil Hills *Nags Head *Roanoke Island * Hatteras Island *Dare Mainland 

OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU 
One Visitors Center Circle, Manteo, NC 27954 
[P] 252-473-2138 [F] 252-473-5777 
[Toll-Free] 877.OBX.4FUN    
www.outerbanks.org 

 

Coastal Resources Commission 

February 15, 2024 

 

Dear Commissioners: 

 

The Dare County Tourism Board, on behalf of the Friends of Jockey's Ridge, strongly supports the readoption of 

Area of Environmental Concern (AEC) status for Jockey's Ridge State Park. The recent decision by the Rules 

Review Commission to potentially remove this crucial designation poses a significant threat to the environmental 

integrity and long-term well-being of this unique coastal geologic formation. 

 

Jockey's Ridge holds immense ecological, scientific, and cultural significance, making it a vital treasure that 

requires thoughtful preservation measures. The AEC designation, as outlined in 15A NCAC 07H .0507, 

acknowledges Jockey's Ridge as a unique coastal geologic formation and places it under environmental 

protection, emphasizing the importance of preventing uncontrolled or incompatible development that could 

jeopardize its irreplaceable features. 

 

The benefits and protections offered by the AEC designation are indispensable for the preservation of Jockey's 

Ridge. One such advantage is the regulation that ensures sand migrating off the state property is replenished on 

the dune, maintaining its volume and preventing relocation or commercial sale. Furthermore, the AEC 

designation not only safeguards the park from undesirable development but also brings national attention, as 

evidenced by its listing on the National Park Service website. 

 

During the recent public meeting held by the Coastal Resources Commission, Nags Head Mayor Ben Cahoon 

highlighted the urgency of the situation. An AEC requires a closer examination of proposed activities and 

intervention, providing time to consider the consequences of actions that could impact this environmental 

treasure. The national recognition garnered through the AEC designation further enhances the visibility of 

Jockey's Ridge, attracting over a half million visitors each year from across the country. 

 

We understand the complexities surrounding the Rules Review Commission's actions and the challenges posed 

by changes in legislative law. However, we firmly believe that the reinstatement of the AEC status is crucial for 

the continued protection of Jockey's Ridge. It is our collective responsibility to preserve this natural landmark for 

future generations and ensure that it remains accessible for scientific, educational, and recreational purposes. 

 

In conclusion, we urge the North Carolina Coastal Resources Commission to act swiftly and decisively in support 

of the readoption of AEC status for Jockey's Ridge State Park. Your commitment to preserving this unique 

coastal geologic formation is paramount in maintaining the ecological balance and cultural significance that 

Jockey's Ridge holds for the community and visitors alike. 

 

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and we look forward to the continued protection of Jockey's Ridge 

State Park. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Monica Thibodeau, Chair    Lee Nettles, Executive Director 

Dare County Tourism Board    Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 



























































1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT 
FEBRUARY 15, 2024 
 

Long-Range Tourism Management Plan  
 

Special Committee Meeting Update: 

Our first committee meeting was held on February 7, 2024 from 9:00am-11:00am in the Curtis H. 

Creech, Jr. Memorial Boardroom at the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Administrative offices. 

Following Committee Chairman Dennis Robinson’s welcome, committee member introductions, the 

roles of the committee and a review of the LRTMP planning process/values/vision, the focus shifted 

to reviewing and discussing Strategic Goal #1 (Strengthening Resident and Visitor Engagement). A 

few highlights from the meeting include: 

▪ Non-Profit Organization partnerships – Discussion topics included non-profit directory on 

OBVB website, OBVB monthly NPO/Community eNewsletter communication, 2nd Annual 

NPO Mission Mixer (April 2024), NPO Knowledge Series workshop (Sept. 2024), proactive 

NPO marketing and PR efforts and voluntourism efforts and opportunities. 

▪ Resident engagement program – Discussion topics included examples of how we engaged 

with the community to create the plan, the impact of transparent two-way communication with 

residents, the importance of communicating tourism’s value to residents (how tourism 

contributes to resident well-being and quality of life), a review of existing/upcoming resident 

communications tactics, the creation of a more robust LRTMP website presence and 

exploring engagement ideas such as the creation of an Ambassador program. 

▪ Outer Banks Pledge – The committee discussed the purpose behind creating a tourism 

pledge, explored other destinations who have crafted similar pledges and reviewed a 

preliminary draft of an Outer Banks Pledge. With feedback received from several committee 

members, a revised Pledge will be drafted for the committee to review.  

▪ Next Meeting – Our next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 9:00am.  

 

Community Engagement & Outreach 

Community Meetings & Events 

2/9/24 – Outer Banks Hotline/Dare County Sheriff’s Office Event (Human Trafficking) – attendee  

2/13/24 – Outer Banks Community Foundation Ribbon Cutting – attendee 

2/20/24 – Dare County Housing Task Force Meeting – attendee  

2/22/24 – Coastal Environmental Educators Network (CEEN) Meeting – presenter 

3/1/24 – OBX Community Service/Non-Profit Collaborative – attendee (OBVB hosting) 

3/14/24 – Dare County State of the Child Conference – attendee  

3/17/24 to 3/19/24 – Visit NC Tourism Conference (Greenville, NC) – attendee  

3/19/24 – Dare County Housing Task Force Meeting – attendee  

3/19/24 – Outer Banks Home Builders Association (General Membership) Meeting – presenter 

3/20/24 – Dare County Housing Task Force Meeting – attendee 

3/27/24 – Jockey’s Ridge State Park Community Room Ribbon Cutting – attendee 

* Awaiting confirmation on several Q1 2024 ‘Road Show’ dates 
 

Communications 

LRTMP post-Committee Meeting recap and update 

2/13/24 – eNewsletter: Non-Profit Community Update 



 

In the Works / On the Horizon 

▪ Continued outreach and connection with other Community Engagement and Destination Plan 

Managers in other tourism-driven destinations to share ideas and best practices  

▪ Revamped LRTMP section on OuterBanks.org (implementation in progress) 

▪ Update NPO/Voluntourism pages on website (ongoing) 

▪ Continue to schedule LRTMP “Road Show” dates (ongoing) 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Outer Banks Non-Profit Community Updates 
January 2024 eNewsletter 
 

Tourism Board Event Grant Applications to be Accepted February 1-15 
The Dare County Tourism Board sponsors several grant opportunities each year to help 
fund and support various Outer Banks projects and events organized by non-profits and 
government entities. Event Grants are designed to support events that drive overnight 
visitation to Dare County during less-than-peak months (Sept. 7 to June 15). The 
upcoming round of Event Grant applications will be accepted February 1 through 
February 15. Applications must be received no less than four (4) months before the 
start of the project. If you have grant questions or need additional information, contact: 
Diane Bognich, Director of Administration, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
bognich@outerbanks.org | 252-473-2138 

_____________ 
 

Business and Employer Feedback Needed on Topic of Child Care  
Children & Youth Partnership is in need of feedback from local businesses and 
employers regarding the topic of child care and youth services that are positively 
and/or negatively impacting your business. Completing the survey should take less 
than five minutes. The information that is submitted will be shared at the 2024 State 
of the Child Conference for Dare County, to be held on March 14, 2024. The goal of 
the conference is to bring greater awareness about issues related to Dare County’s 
youth including child care, early learning, mental health and recreation and to guide 
future planning for local children and youth. 

_____________ 
 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Explored in  
Outer Banks NPO Workshop 
Victor Jones, a Licensed Clinical Social Worker and Senior Trainer for 
Resources for Resilience recently led a workshop for Outer Banks non-profit 
professionals on the topic of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. The session, which 
took place at College of the Albemarle's Dare Campus in Manteo, was delivered 
through the viewpoint of the nervous system. Topics such as resiliency, 
overcoming adversity, connecting with others and creating healthier 
relationships were explored. The workshop, presented by Children & Youth 
Partnership for Dare County and Be Resilient OBX, was made possible through 

a grant provided by NC Healthy and Resilient Communities, with support from Outer Banks Community Foundation 
and the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau. 

_____________ 
 

Social Impact Spotlight: Beach Food Pantry  
A recent video post on the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Facebook page spotlights 
how residents and visitors can support our great local non-profit organizations like 
the Beach Food Pantry. 
 

https://conta.cc/3vIFVqx
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHCV16W_HgyYa4ywCjHhfc39Sae7mqqROs_R91bCz-zBvKegUvSv9hhEhgTYYsD7ooO7VhPcqLl85uU0NcnE_PhkL3ZcjU8pp2aIJgJnNsYU_&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOhjbnU7Wlij4Bzfcfghgpwvmpwb3KBmnDY9LymgD-i6Md7IIEJtfqy3YJtB-GY8nm7ukU28Y6BHfxU0aVQZM4DEL72se1PEPIBYrUVHkmqYmvcCeJWudmKujx02FB3JSrt3zeIQg_IwiSZamX753VxKYSrxH77gfoBuP5yh4Je7m-L3QyJRfhookXh7OtF0GfArps2eqGUT4P_PGtAOwXExOm6inVjTZp3YuLvFlheWk67JD2-XMZY06aJr_iYFRLU-JkaJZNB2-ivYLQ0vJTEw==&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://assets.simpleviewinc.com/simpleview/image/upload/v1/clients/outerbanks/Event_Grant_Guidelines_for_Web_344e095a_1d5f_493e_a6e2_7b8771bb1a23_e2403917-96bb-4d91-8bcb-4d1223f485cb.pdf
mailto:bognich@outerbanks.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOKUTsf9HtD70ldof9F6pEKRYVukvMjmwVQ1IY8zAHYqg_wtuF392wl1hYkv4h79nlzNgg6m-lWNE_XviFklaLysJd0fDEOQLdA70YkRsBaRv9Gk0d-FYH7mq7DcRO9cHoTYkf1G7R5xFL1MDRAMDJC3gRmfETSyoWclYWVJ4_knwgBdKcebKclTT4Mnh39rGi&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOKUTsf9HtD70ldof9F6pEKRYVukvMjmwVQ1IY8zAHYqg_wtuF392wl1hYkv4h79nlzNgg6m-lWNE_XviFklaLysJd0fDEOQLdA70YkRsBaRv9Gk0d-FYH7mq7DcRO9cHoTYkf1G7R5xFL1MDRAMDJC3gRmfETSyoWclYWVJ4_knwgBdKcebKclTT4Mnh39rGi&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOLqdAxcc1QYyFSaOp0Gz3EKVeDJKNLo9IloW0ZPMj7VqJWRj6V-Vdb9SpbcHV3FmU9R8285oTqOk=&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOLqdAxcc1QYyFSaOp0Gz3EKVeDJKNLo9IloW0ZPMj7VqJWRj6V-Vdb9SpbcHV3FmU9R8285oTqOk=&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001bc1jgBKdX43gCTQdQzl8H7y7-DYFFUkTLKOua5KLeWqJpUew82vxHM_byyU2hbKOPM9RgJkarHjVvQ-zu-atViSjkjtd-bQ49qDtoF4Tb1jQsf9W3WwCZlkN3MsryPV_WNzwCNJ2KobHto-9LcJjf99_q-o6QG8ONz5_KZX2ml5f9R2Rs-exNfPr1gcHUDgu&c=rk2dGZv4KAmXiv7KK9OYTmq_He_fpNTpuZbUUbIjWsqYOh70srlPeA==&ch=7_FF_GEkF6C6fYjpVNWTSFcS128M60W72P5WtCgk-SRLu2zSeXi3Kg==


TOURISM SALES & EVENTS | INDUSTRY RELATIONS ACTIVITY – FEBRUARY 2024 
 
Recent Trade Show Report: 
 
Tourism Sales participated in the American Bus Association (ABA) Marketplace held in Nashville, 
TN, from January 12 to 16, 2025. The event drew 2,700 delegates, including 300 tour operators. 
Our Bureau Staff secured a total of 52 pre-arranged, quality appointments, each lasting 
approximately 7 minutes—akin to speed dating for our destination. These appointments 
covered a spectrum from fostering new business prospects to aiding tour planners in 
coordinating programs slated for our region this year. Notably, we have 9 senior group tours 
slated for Spring and Fall 2024 in our area that can be traced back to ABA. Staff is currently 
working on the sales leads from this marketplace and will distribute them to our industry 
partners over the next few weeks. 
 
What Is a Marketplace? A commercial trade show that allows you to sell your destination to 
potential tour operators/companies in seven minutes.  Please note that staff is currently selling 
for the Fall 2024 and 2025 seasons. 
 
What’s the economic impact of a tour group: A fully loaded motorcoach (35 passengers on average) on a 
charter or tour making an overnight stay contributes an average of $9,000 to $11,000 (USD) per day to 
the local economy in expenditures including meals, lodging, shopping, admission fees, souvenirs, and 
local taxes. – American Bus Association 
              
 

Welcoming Back Student Groups | Snapshot of Upcoming Activity 

Two major motorcoach companies specializing in student group travel have announced a 
bustling Spring season on the horizon. Young Transportation is scheduled to transport 12 
schools or student groups to our area, utilizing 25 buses and generating 886 room nights. 
Similarly, Christian Tours will bring 8 schools or student groups, employing 18 buses and 
yielding 783 room nights. These figures represent only a fraction of the upcoming tours to the 
Outer Banks, signaling a promising resurgence in the student travel market for our area. 
              
 
Tourism Sales: Future Trade Show Dates and Locations:  
Bureau Staff is currently scheduled for the following industry shows: 

• March 17-19, 2024: Visit NC 365, Greenville, NC 
• March 20 – 24, 2024: STS Domestic Showcase, Little Rock, AR 



The Soundside Event Site | Calendar Attached:   
Staff continues to work with event planners for events at the Soundside Event Site. Please find 
attached the 2024 Events Calendar for your review. 
              
 
SAVE THE DATE: OBX Soft-Shell Week| May 13 – 18, 2024:  
Bureau staff, along with Board Member Mark Ballog and several restaurateurs, have once again 
initiated efforts to highlight one of the Outer Banks' most 
beloved delicacies: softshell crabs. With many restaurants 
featuring their own rendition of a softshell crab dish during 
this period, we're proud to declare it as a weeklong event! 
We're currently in the process of enlisting restaurants to 
participate in our crab crawl interactive map. An immersive 
crab-tasting tapas crawl/tour with OBX Transportainment. 
Additionally, we're exploring opportunities for a meet-and-
greet with local Shedders and a few cooking demonstrations. Patrons will still get to vote for 
their favorite OBX Softshell dish from participating establishments. Participation is free of 
charge. If you're interested in joining us, please don't hesitate to reach out. See attached flyer 
for more information.  
 

“The Fun Starts When the Shell Comes Off” 
              
 
Industry Relations: Restaurant Winter Hours 
 The Bureau continues to work with our restaurant 
partners to gather their Off-Season hours. This 
comprehensive list can be found on the 
outerbanks.org homepage under "Fall | Winter 
Restaurant Hours." If your restaurant is not listed 
or its hours require updating, please let us know. 
Feel free to share this resource with your front-line 
staff members to assist incoming visitors. 
 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1N-MDFAhV-KQCdX6dO2RRiDF-MFiTbV6CHcvHoY7Xr_s/edit#gid=1493795058


Name of Event Date of Event Event Times (times may 
change as event draws closer)

Number of Atteedees Site Reserved

Soundside Market Saturday, March 31, 2024  (rain date: Saturday, April 6)
9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)

Wednesday, June 19, 2024

OBX Rod and Custom Festival Friday, May 2- Saturday, May 4, 2024 10:00am - 6:00pm 750-1000 Tuesday, April 30 – Monday, May 6, 2024

Holy Ghost Fire Revival Friday, May 17-Sunday, May 18, 2024 7:00pm-11:00pm 250-500 Friday, May 17-Sunday, May 19, 2024

Soundside Fun Fair Thursday, June 6-Sunday, June 9, 2024 5:00pm - 10:00pm 4000 - over all the event day; 
about 800 per night

Tuesday, June 4 – Monday, June 10, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 19, 2024  (rain date: Friday, June 21)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, June 19, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, June 26, 2024  (rain date: Friday, June 28)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, June 26, 2024

Last Friday Celebration Friday, June 28, 2024
4:00pm  - 8:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)

Friday, June 28, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 3, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 5)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, July 3, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 10, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 12)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, July 10, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 17, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 19)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, July 17, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 24, 2024 (rain date: Friday, July 26)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, July 24, 2024

Last Friday Celebration Friday, July 26, 2024
4:00pm  - 8:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)

Friday, July 26, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, July 31, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 2)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, July 31, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 7, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 9)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, August 7, 2024

Soundside Market Wednesday, August 14, 2024 (rain date: Friday, August 16)

9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)
Wednesday, August 14, 2024

Soundside Market Sunday, September 1, 2024
9:00am-1:00pm 500-750 (Not all at one time)

Sunday, September 1, 2024

2024 Soundside Event Site Schedule 



Name of Event Date of Event Event Times (times may 
change as event draws closer)

Number of Atteedees Site Reserved

2024 Soundside Event Site Schedule 

Outer Banks Sailing Association Friday, September 6 - Sunday, September 8, 2024 9:00am - 5:00pm 200 Friday, September 6 - Sunday, September 8, 2024

Sumospeed Beach Bash Saturday, September 14, 2024 11:00am - 6:00pm 1000- (Not all at one time) Saturday, September 14, 2024

OBX Jeep Invasion Friday, September 20 - Saturday, September 21, 2024 9:00am - 5:00pm 1000 Thursday, September 19 - Sunday, September 22, 2024

Garage Band Charities Cruise Saturday, October 5, 2024 10:00am - 5:00pm 750-1000 Friday, October 4 - Saturday, Octobe 5, 2024

Down the Road Surf & Art Festival 
(tentative)

Sunday, October 13, 2024 TBD TBD TBD

Outer Banks Seafood Festival
Saturday, October 19, 2024 10:30am - 6:00pm 8000-10000 (Not all at one time) Wednesday, October 16-Wednesday, October 23, 2024

OBX Brewtag
Saturday, October 28, 2024 11:00am - 6:00pm 4000-5000 Wednesday, October 23-Tuesday, October 29, 2024



 

 

 

 

OUTER BANKS SOFT-SHELL WEEK | MAY 13 – 18, 2024 

The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau is thrilled to announce the return of the second annual Outer Banks So�-Shell 

Week, taking place from May 13 to 18, 2024! This week-long restaurant crawl (pun intended) will spotlight your 

finest so�-shell tapas dishes, allowing patrons to leisurely savor them throughout the week at their own pace. 

We are also working on a few different ways to showcase these mol�ng crustaceans se�ng up a meet and greet 

with local Crabbers to learn more about the history and the process for crea�ng this delectable dish, possible 

cooking demos and an a�ernoon tapas crawl aboard the OBX Party Bus.  

With the support of the Visitors Bureau's robust marke�ng efforts, we will spread the word and promote 

par�cipa�ng restaurants far and wide. 

Here’s how the Bureau plans to promote: 

• A website page for the event with a list of par�cipa�ng restaurants and informa�on about what so� 

shells are, the shedding process, a list of where visitors can buy them locally and a tutorial on how to 

clean and cook. 

• A QR code with an interac�ve map of par�cipa�ng restaurants, their dishes, plus an op�on to vote for 

the best of So�-Shell Week. 

• Poster Distribu�on ahead of �me to promote locally. 

• Promo�on of So�-Shell Week locally and regionally through a mix of media, social, email and website. 

• Best So�-Shell Dish Trophy to the Restaurant with the most votes. 

• Promote on the Hampton Roads TV morning show in February, March and April 

 
OUR ASK: We would like par�cipa�ng restaurants to send us a descrip�on and picture (if possible) of the so�-

shell appe�zer/tapas size or entrée you’d like to highlight. Feature a so�-shell item that’s usually on your menu 

at that �me of year, or feel free to design a dish just for this.  

 
HAVE QUESTIONS? READY TO SIGN-UP? Click here to sign up via our google form or feel free to contact Lorrie 

Love (love@outerbanks.org) or Mark Ballog (markballog@aol.com). 

 

“The Fun Starts When the Shell Comes Off” 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfFZJ6hQAczQu8H2dY7L79NHSCAtqSXpbvl5jRNX99dwRRG6Q/viewform
mailto:love@outerbanks.org
mailto:markballog@aol.com

























	Feb 15 Meeting Packet
	Cover

	February 15, 2024 BOARD AGENDA
	Feb 15 Meeting Packet
	January 18 2024 DCTB
	NH Extension
	TIG FINAL DRAFT

	Feb 15 Meeting Packet
	FINAL DRAFT Long Term RF Grant 
	Program Intent

	CRC Letter Jockeys Ridge
	Budget & Finance Report
	Meals Occupancy Graphs
	Budget & Finance
	B1
	B2



	Feb 15 Meeting Packet
	Budget & Finance Report
	Budget & Finance
	b3


	Marketing Dashboard

	Feb 15 Meeting Packet
	Community  Engagement
	TOURISM SALES 
	TOURISM SALES ACTIVITY-Board Report 021524.pdf
	Soundside Event Site 2024 Calendar - Feb 24.pdf
	Feb 24

	Outer Banks Soft-Shell Week-Restaurants-2024.pdf

	Public Relations Report




